Ml

PARISH OF GROUVILLE

Ml

Minutes

Minutes of the Parish Rates Assembly

Held at Grouville Parish Hall on

Thursday, 04 September 2025 at 19:00

PRESENT

Connétable Mark Labey - Chairman

Peter le Cuirot — Procureur du Bien Public

Chris Osgood - Procureur du Bien Public
Patricia da Silva — Parish Secretary and Minutes
In attendance:

David Moehle - Partner at PKF BBA

Open Meeting

The Connétable opened the meeting by welcoming everyone in
attendance.

The Connétable invited the Parish Secretary to read out the Convening
Notice.

The Connétable advised that votes taken this evening will be by a show
of hands. Ballot papers have been handed out just in case they are
required for item 8 of the agenda.

The Connétable pointed out the fire exits at the Parish Hall and informed
that the meeting will be recorded for the purpose of accurate minute
taking. Speeches have been restricted to five minutes per person.

Apologies

Apologies were received from the following:

Drew Livingston and Andrew Le Cheminant.

1. Approval of the
Minutes of 19, June
2025

The Connétable explained due to last minute queries, amendments were
made to the minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 19 June 2025.

Changes were made to:

o Page 2, paragraph 4 and 8
o Page 3, paragraph 8
o Last paragraph on page 3 which carries over to page 4

The Connétable advised the amended minutes were uploaded to the
Parish website and social media on Wednesday, 03 September 2025.
Copies are also available this evening.

The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 19 June 2025 were
proposed by Andrew Koester and seconded by John Coutanche. The
Assembly voted and the minutes were approved by the majority.

2. Adopt the Audited
Accounts for the
Financial Year
Ended 30 April
2025

The Connétable invited any questions from the floor for David Moehle.

Mark Houze asked for confirmation that the audit opinion is on the
financial statements as a whole and it was not an opinion of anything
else, specifically not on individual transactions, processes or controls.




David Moehle replied that this is correct and referred Mark Houze to the
audit report which explains the scope of the audit and PKF BBA’s
responsibilities. This includes a web link to a detailed breakdown.

No further questions were raised.

The Connétable thanked David Moehle and PKF BBA for all their work.

The Connétable explained the overspend on the following items:

Heat, light, fuel and water

The Parish’s fuel supplier accidently cancelled the Parish’s account
and the building’s fuel supply got extremely low. The situation was
rectified but the tank had to be refilled completely.

Telephone
The Parish’s Avaya phone systems were discontinued and no longer

supported by JT (Jersey) Ltd, therefore a new phone system was put
in place.

Postage

The local postage rate increased and due to the late setting of the
Rate last year, reminder letters that aren’t normally sent, were
printed and delivered.

Upkeep of Premises

A new oil-fired boiler had to be urgently replaced.

In line with the new Rented Dwellings Licence requirements, an
Electrical Installation Condition Report was undertaken at the
Caretaker’s lodge which highlighted matters that needed attending
to, which the Parish hadn’t predicted.

Work has been undertaken for the restoration and refurbishing of
gates and lamp over mantle at the Church.

Urgent repairs were undertaken to the lean-to roof at the Rectory.

Floral and tree planting

Irrigation added to hanging baskets, including hiring of the hi-ab and
area by the flagpole at Abraham le Sueur carpark had new grass laid
and flowers planted.

General Expenses

A large number of senior citizens attended the Senior Citizens Winter
Warmer.

Bat surveys had to be undertaken at Grouville Church before any
work can commence on the roof.

Staff Training, Health and Safety

Training was required for a new member of staff.

A new defibrillator was installed outside the public toilets at
Longbeach Carpark.

IT
New laptops were required for the new Rates Assessors.

Security updates were required to the Parish’s IT systems.




e Branchage

A large number of guests attended the first Visites du Branchage on
Friday, 05 July 2024.

e Sundry expenses

Tree maintenance was urgently required at La Rue de la Ville es
Renauds Carpark.

e Equipment

It was brought to the Connetable’s attention of equipment that
required urgent maintenance and replacement at the Parish Depot.

The Connétable invited any questions from the floor.

Rod Amy requested clarification on who is undertaking the Parish’s
bookkeeping. The Connétable explained he has recently employed a new
bookkeeper and that his preference has always been to have an external
company as the work is carried outside of the Parish.

Caroline Anderson asked why the fixed assets were not fully written down
in 2024/2025 as agreed at a previous Parish Assembly and why they still
appear on the balance sheet. The Connétable replied that in 2023 the
Parish Assembly voted to defer removing depreciation after two years.
Caroline Anderson advised that there is £3,930 on the balance sheet and
pointed out that the Connétable has not budgeted for the financial year
2025/2026 to reduce the figure to £0.

Chris Parlett explained that the proposition he made in 2023 was to
complete the period of depreciation, the vast majority of which would
have been completed in two years and what is left is IT equipment in the
office which is close to its end.

Caroline Anderson referred to note seven, page 13 of the accounts and
requested further information on the utilisation of funds from the
reserves.

The Connétable confirmed the following:

e Roads Reserve - this was utilised for road projects on La Cache des
Pres and La Rue du Moulin de Bas.

e Community in Bloom - the reserve has been spent and is how closed.

e Church and Rectory Reserve - following approval of a Parish
Assembly earlier this year, the reserve has been merged into the
Property Reserve.

Caroline Anderson asked if the Connétable could itemise expenditure
from the reserves in future accounts so it is clear to ratepayers what
funds have been removed from those reserves. The Connétable said that
is his intention.

Rod Amy expressed his concerns regarding the Parish’s use of reserves,
where taking items straight to reserves loses transparency and proper
comparisons within the Parish’s general account. Rod Amy explained that
reserves should only be established for projects scheduled in future years
and projects occurring in the current financial year should be listed in the
estimates in the general account. Not doing so would distort the
comparison of the previous year in the accounts and undermine the
meaningfulness of comparing the estimates. The Connétable thanked Rod
Amy and said that they would have to agree to disagree on some points.

Mark Houze referred to page six of the accounts and outlined his concerns
regarding the governance surrounding Parish reserves. Mark Houze
clarified that he sought confirmation from the auditor that they do not
look at the controls or processes of expenditure and they look at the




financial situation as a whole. As a member of the Accounts Committee,
Mark Houze declared he is not satisfied that the ratepayer’s assets are
being looked after. Mark Houze proposed that no further expenditure be
made against any parish reserve funds until an assembly has agreed
written governance rules as to the use of those funds.

David Moehle referred to Mark Houze’s comment and advised that PKF
BBA do look at controls and expenses, however they do not provide an
opinion on them separately.

The Connétable highlighted that the Reserves Policy and the governance
surrounding them was approved at a Parish Assembly on 28 April 2025.

Mark Houze’s proposition was seconded by Mark Dawson. The Assembly
voted by a show of hands with 46 in favour and 46 against.

Peter Hargreaves proposed, given the tied vote, that Mark Houze's
proposition is taken to a separate Parish Assembly to discuss reserves.
This was seconded by Don Eddie. Leslie Norman noted that as the
Connétable has confirmed controls are in place regarding reserves, no
further action is required.

Following a wide range of comments and opinions concerning reserves,
the Connétable advised that a future Parish Assembly will be held to
discuss the approved Reserves Policy.

The Assembly voted for Peter Hargreaves' proposition by a show of hands
and the proposition was approved by the majority with 1 vote against.

The audited accounts were proposed by Tony Renouf and seconded by
Anthony Powell. The Assembly voted by a show of hands with 55 in favour
and 2 against.

3. To Place the
Amount Required
for the Upkeep
and Maintenance
of the Byroads for
the Financial Year
Ending 30 April
2026

The Connétable invited questions from the floor.

Caroline Andreson suggested that the Assembly does not approve the
Road Reserve until ratepayers are satisfied that there are sufficient
controls in place.

Mark Houze advised £25,000 for emergency work has been requested
twice in the estimates and no information has been provided to
ratepayers to justify the list of projects set out under the reserves, though
it was noted that providing the list of projects is an improvement from
previous years. The Connétable clarified that as previously communicated
to Mark Houze, the £25,000 allocated for emergency work is strictly for
emergencies. The separate £25,000 is for standard road maintenance,
such as potholes. The Connétable highlighted that the funds required for
the listed road projects is not unusual and reflects similar levels of
expenditure seen in other parishes.

Rod Amy asked if the projects listed under the Roads Reserve had
commenced or been completed. The Connétable confirmed that some of
the projects have already begun or have been completed. Rod Amy
commented those projects, therefore, should instead be allocated under
the Roads Account as the projects are being undertaken in this financial
year. The Connétable disagreed.

Procureur du Bien Public, Chris Osgood acknowledged that there has been
a lot of criticism directed towards the Connétable and the Procureurs. He
noted that following requests, a Procurement policy and a Reserves Policy
was put in place. Chris Osgood emphasised that they’re making every
effort to ensure transparency.

The Connétable asked if there was a proposer to approve the amount
required for the upkeep and maintenance of the by-roads to which
Anthony Powell duly did so, with Chris Parlett seconding. The Assembly
voted by a show of hands with 57 in favour and 12 against.




To Consider and
Approve the
Inclusion of Funds
in the Estimates
for the Financial
Year Ending 30
April 2026 to
Cover the
Continuation of
Bring Bank
Recycling for the
Period January to
April 2026

The Connétable explained that shortly after the convening notice was
published, the Government of Jersey Infrastructure and Environment
Department, confirmed they will continue to support the bring bank
recycling facility at Holme Grown. However, the site is owned by Fauvic
Nurseries who now require a rental fee for the use of the land and
therefore, approval is being requested to include a fee of £7,000 in the
estimates to cover the cost of land rental for bring bank recycling.

Tony Renouf noted that without the bring bank recycling facility at the
site, Holme Grown would likely experience a financial loss due to the high
footfall generated by the recycling service.

Anne Hargreaves referred to the refuse contract and expressed that there
should be a collection charge to commercial properties. The Connétable
advised this is not relevant to recycling, however for information
purposes only explained the current refuse contractor, Vautier Municipal
Ltd, has private agreements in place with commercial properties, who are
billed directly.

Caroline Anderson pointed out that the current £7,000 cost to cover
January to April, would project to £21,000 over a 12-month period and
suggested the Parish look at relocating the bring bank recycling facility.
The Connétable assured that a future Parish Assembly will be held to
discuss the topic of recycling in further detail.

Mark Houze requested clarification on the size of the bring bank recycling
area subject to the Assembly approval. The Connétable confirmed that it
includes the existing land and the access area required for lorry
manoeuvring.

The Connétable asked if there was a proposer to approve the inclusion of
£7,000 in the estimates to cover the cost of land rental at Holme Grown
to which Joan Gardner duly did so, with Andrew Koester seconding. The
Assembly voted by a show of hands with 44 in favour and 40 against.

5. To Approve the

Release of Funds
from the Property
Reserve

The Connétable asked for a proposer to approve the release of £40,000
from the Property Reserve to cover the following two projects:

- Repairs to Grouville Parish Church Roof
- Repairs to Grouville Parish Church Wall

Nina Lodwick-Campbell proposed and Chris Totty seconded. The
Assembly voted by a show of hands with 63 in favour and 5 against.

Tony Renouf highlighted that there are other Churches around the island
and appreciates Grouville Church, however asked that the Connétable
consider other contributions in future. The Connétable noted Tony
Renouf’'s comment and advised that Grouville has lost four churches,
however the Connétable will discuss this matter at the next Rectorat
meeting.

Present, and
Approve, the
Estimates for the
Financial Year
Ending 30 April
2026

The Connétable invited any questions from the floor.

Caroline Anderson repeated that the Connétable has not budgeted to
write off the remaining depreciation.

Caroline Anderson requested further information about the vehicle
reserve. The Connétable confirmed the following:

- The vehicles concerned are the Honorary Police vehicle, the tipper
truck and a van.

- It is the Connetable’s intention to have two Honorary Police vehicles
and would like one of them to be an electric vehicle. It is important
that there are two Honorary Police vehicles on site during serious
incidents.

- The replacement for the van will be a second-hand model.

- The Connétable estimates that the tipper truck will need to be
replaced in three to four years’ time.




- As soon as sufficient funds have been accumulated in the reserve,
the Parish will stop requesting funds from the ratepayer.

Charles Pinel asked for clarification of the telephone budget. The
Connétable explained that the overspend was due to the replacement of
the telephone system.

Linda Houze proposed that the Assembly withdraws the estimate of
£10,000 for the Jersey Association of Charities, until the Connétable
decides a specific charity so that ratepayers are aware on where those
funds go to. This was seconded by Elaine Paisnel. The Assembly voted
by a show of hands with 39 in favour and 31 against.

Charles Pinel asked the Connétable to explain the budget for painted
lines. The Connétable confirmed it will cover all the yellow lines. When
Charles Pinel inquired if it included the abominable painted red
pavements the Connétable affirmed it did, noting that a small portion of
the budget was allocated for the painted red pavement as £12,000 was
approved in the previous financial year, and the total cost was just
under £20,000.

Rod Amy questioned the Connetable’s response to Charles Pinel’s
inquiry, noting that the total cost of the painted red pavements is just
under £20,000, while the budget allocated for painted lines is £20,000.
It was suggested that, based on this, the budget may in fact be solely
for this and does not include yellow lines. The Connétable said that Rod
Amy had assumed that this was the case.

Nina Lodwick-Campbell commented that although she initially had
strong reservations about the red painted pavements, she now fully
supports it as it has improved safety and the colour has dulled down.

The Connétable asked if there was a proposer to approve the estimates
for the year ending 30 April 2026 to which Anthony Powell duly did so,
with Tony Renouf seconding. The Assembly voted by a show of hands
with 58 in favour and 20 against.

7. To Approve a Parish
Rate

The Connétable explained that as the Assembly have approved to
remove £10,000 from the estimates, he proposed a rate of 1.35 pence.

The Connétable asked for any other proposals for a rate.

Following explanation from the Connétable and David Moehle that
underspends from both the previous financial year and earlier years can
be used to offset the rate, Mark Houze proposed to keep the rate the
same at 1.31 pence, which was seconded by Peter Hargreaves.

No other proposals were made.

The Assembly voted by a show of hands for the proposed rate of 1.31
pence, with 45 in favour and 42 against.

The Connétable confirmed that the rate per quarter set is 1.31 pence.

8. To Elect Members
of the Accounts
Committee for the
Financial Year
Ending 30 April
2026

The Connétable confirmed the current members of the Accounts
Committee who wish to remain, those being:

Mark Labey — Connétable

Peter Le Cuirot — Senior Procureur du Bien Public
Chris Osgood - Procureur du Bien Public

Helen Gunton - Recteur

Drew Livingston - Chef de Police

Andrew Koester — Head Rates Assessor

Anne Hargreaves - Parishioner

Mark Houze - Parishioner

TNOUAWLNE

Andrew Koester proposed to elect the current members of the
committee. This was seconded by Bruce Burnett. The Assembly voted
by a show of hands and the proposal was approved by the majority.




The Connétable asked if there were any further nominations.

Adrian le Gal proposed David Mcloughlin to join the Accounts
Committee. This was seconded by Neil Wade.

There were no more proposals to elect further members on to the
committee.

The Connétable declared David Mcloughlin duly elected to the Accounts
Committee.

9. To Appoint the
Auditors for the
Financial Year
Ending 30 April
2026

The Connétable asked for a proposer to appoint PKF BBA as the Parish’s
auditors for the financial year.

Mark Dawson proposed and Maggie Esson seconded. The Assembly
voted and the proposal was approved unanimously.

10. Meeting Closed

The Connétable closed the meeting at 20:57.




